
 

 
COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 

 

Date: 
 

Monday, 17 January 2022 

Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: 

 

Hybrid Meeting. Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, 

ST13 6HQ and via 'Teams 
7 January 2022 

 
PART 1 

*Please note timings are approximate. 

1. Apologies.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)  

4. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 8) 

5. To Note the Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel. 
(Pages 9 - 12) 

6. Declaration of Interests:  

 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

7. Work Programme (Pages 13 - 14) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 
 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 

 

8. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 
 

9. Citizens Advice Bureau - Annual Update (Leek, Cheadle & Staffordshire North & 
Stoke-on-Trent Biddulph Office). (6:15pm)* (Pages 15 - 24) 

10. Support Staffordshire Update Presentation. (6:45pm)*(Pages 25 - 36) 

11. Your Housing Group - Regular Performance Update. (7:15pm)* (Pages 37 - 50) 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



12. Climate Change Update (7:45pm)* (To Follow) 

13. Exclusion of the Press and Public.  

 The Chair to move:- 

 
“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 

public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in 
Section 10 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the 

public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 
 

14. To Approve the Exempt Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 51 - 52) 

 (Paragraph 2, 7 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual.  

Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. ) 

 
 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor D Shaw (Chair) Councillor T McNicol (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor J Aberley Councillor G Bentley 

Councillor G Heath Councillor I Herdman 
Councillor T Holmes Councillor K Hoptroff 

Councillor B A Hughes Councillor A Hulme 
Councillor B Johnson Councillor J T Jones 
Councillor K Martin Councillor T Riley 

Councillor P Roberts Councillor L Swindlehurst 
Councillor P Taylor Councillor R Ward 

Councillor N Yates  
 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

MONDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2021 
 

PRESENT: Councillor D Shaw (Chair)   
 

 Councillors J Aberley, G Bentley, G Heath, I Herdman, T Holmes, 
K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, B Johnson, J T Jones, T Riley, P Roberts, 

P Taylor, R Ward and N Yates. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor C J S Atkins, M Bowen, B Cawley, M Deaville, M Gledhill, 

A Hart, L Page, J Porter, D Price, J Salt, S Scalise and P Wilkinson. 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillors K Martin and L Swindlehurst. 
 

66 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 

 

Councillor Wilkinson was substitute member for Councillor Martin and Councillor 

Cawley substituted for Councillor Swindlehurst. 
 

67 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN) 
 

There were no urgent items of business. 
 

68 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 

 

Agenda No. Member Declaring 
Interest 

Nature of Interest 

Agenda Item 9 – Draft 

Climate Change Part 2 
Plan 

Cllr P. Roberts Other – Co-owner of a 

heating and plumbing 
business which 

installed gas and other 
types of heating 

systems. 

 

 
69 SMDC DRAFT CLIMATE CHANGE PART 2 PLAN 

 

Councillor Porter – Portfolio Holder for Climate Change and Biodiversity, introduced 
a report which presented the Council’s approach to tackling the climate change 

emergency. 

 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council recognised the global climate emergency 
and was committed to keeping global heating below the 1.5°Celsius goal of the Paris 

Agreement. 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 15 November 2021 
 

2 
 

The District Council could not solve the problem on its own, but could take a lead 
role in the district and use its powers and influence to support wider local action to 

reduce emissions and prepare for a changing climate. 
 

The national Climate Change Committee estimated that local authorities had powers 

or influence over roughly a third of emissions in their local areas and are believed to 
be responsible for between 2 and 5% of local emissions. The Committee recognised 

that more than half of the cut in emissions required to meet national reduction 
targets rely on people and businesses taking up low-carbon solutions. 

 
When developing its plan for reducing district-wide emissions, the Council drew upon 

three main sources of information: Information gathered by Working Groups, Data 
Analysis and a Climate Change Attitude Survey. 

 
The plan, which can be found at Appendix D of the report, was intended to provide a 
clear vision and strategy for achieving net zero emissions from the district by 2030.  

 
Councillor Aberley – Chair of the Climate Change Working Group, gave thanks to all 

of those involved with the various sub-group meetings and it was still possible for 
comments to be submitted by the Chairs of these groups.  
 

Cllr Yates – Vice Chair of the Climate Change Working Group, also commented on 
the high quality of presentations received by the groups, the positive nature of the 

meetings and the importance of working together. In future, when specific climate 
change projects were scoped, he requested that a more inclusive approach was 
taken.  

 
Other members commented that it had been a long journey to arrive at this point, 

with frustrations along the way. However, they were delighted that the Council could 
now move forward with a plan based on sound research. 
 

The following comments and suggestions were made by members:- 
 

 For further face-to-face consultation to take place. 

 Timescales to be reviewed and the plan to be monitored. 

 In relation to the target around fuel poverty, further action was needed for 
vulnerable private sector tenants. 

 The EPC ratings could be more ambitious. 

 The reference to the re-opening of the Local Plan was welcomed and it was 
important for supplementary planning documents to be produced. However, it 

was felt that work should commence on this earlier than 2025. Development 
of zero carbon buildings would only happen if robust polices were in place. 

 There was a laudable commitment to fuel poverty. However, the Warmer 
Home Scheme had provided subsidised installation of gas boilers which 
shouldn’t be encouraged. 

 A query as to the reason ‘Eat Well’ was included in the documents as it had 
no relevance to carbon reduction.  

 An opinion that The Green Homes grant was a failure, as only 15,000 
properties had received a grant and the scheme hadn’t been replaced with an 

alternative grant fund.  

 In relation to the reduction of emissions from Council owned vehicles and 
activities, apparently, the white lines hadn’t been painted by a local company 

Page 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 15 November 2021 
 

3 
 

on a car park in Cheadle. It was also queried as to whether during the works, 
if the infrastructure for EV charging points had been installed. 

 The Werrington Community Orchard was well received by the community and 
an update on the tree planting in Cheadle was requested.  

 Although LED lighting had been introduced in the leisure centres, there was 

disappointment that the installation hadn’t progressed in other Council owned 
buildings. 

 High Peak Borough Council and Derbyshire County Council seemed more 
advanced with the installation of EV charging points. Limited places to charge 

electric vehicles deterred visitors to the Moorlands and this needed to be 
pursued more urgently. 

 The Council should concentrate on areas it could control and strongly 

influence e.g. retro-fitting housing, fuel poverty and excessive winter deaths.  

 There was an omission of involvement with Your Housing Group in the 

document. 

 More detail was required on how zero vehicle emissions would be achieved 

by 2030  

 A gap in partnership working with the Peak Park and sustainable travel was 

identified. 

 The use of solid fuel to heat homes in the Moorlands was a major issue for 
the Council to focus on as heat pumps were not a feasible alternative, 

particularly for old rural properties.  

 To ensure any County Council funding was received by the north of the 

County. 

 The target for the recycling of waste should be more ambitious. 

 The reason for the Bottle Refill Scheme not being supported was queried.  

 It was felt that the policy to charge residents for replacement brown bins was 
counter-intuitive. An example of a resident who had been charged for the 

provision of a brown bin after they had moved into a property without one was 
described to the Panel.  

 An over-arching assembly for Town and Parish Councils was requested. 

 The key to the success of the strategy was for SMDC to work with community 

groups such as Moorlands Climate Action.  

 As 87% of the people surveyed were concerned about climate change, this 

gave a mandate for the Council to move faster with its plans to tackle climate 
change.  

 Waste recycling centres should have the ability recycle items and sell items to 

the public. 

 Buses travelled through the villages to Alton Towers and only transported 

employees. This was an opportunity for the vacant seats to be taken up by 
members of the public. 
 

Councillor Porter agreed with the importance of public consultation, had visited many 
community groups, parish and town councils and would continue to do so. The 

higher than average levels of fuel poverty in the area was also a concern to him and 
he mentioned the need for more power and resources from the Government to deal 
with the retro-fitting of homes.   

 
The Panel was advised that the tree planting sites in Cheadle would commence 

soon and a comprehensive review of LED lighting in Council owned properties was 
currently being undertaken. The Council had a local first policy in relation to 
procurement and where possible, would procure services locally. 

 Page 5



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 15 November 2021 
 

4 
 

This year, young people and schools had been prioritised to receive the community 
climate change grant funding. Other projects could be considered in the future. The 

projects which had been supported and amounts spent would be supplied after the 
meeting. 
 

Councillor Hart represented SMDC at the Peak District National Park and worked 
closely with the Authority. He would continue to work on sustainable travel 

opportunities. The Council worked in partnership with the Air Aware initiative, 
Staffordshire Wildlife Trust and attended the Joint Waste Board.   
 

Councillor Porter would look into the matter of the painting of the white lines at the 
car park in Cheadle and the charge for brown bins would also be investigated by 

Councillor Scalise – Portfolio Holder for the Environment.  
 
In response to the query around EV charging points, Councillor Hart – Portfolio 

Holder for Assets, explained that the technology installed at sites in the High Peak 
wasn’t the correct solution for the Moorlands. He highlighted the importance of the 

system being easily maintained, future-proofed and the best value for money for 
residents and visitors.  
 

David Smith – Head of Communities and Climate Change, informed members that a 
report was being produced on the ways that local authorities could support the 

delivery of EV charging points by the end of this calendar year. It was understood 
that this will indicate that County Councils should take the strategic lead on delivery 
and that district councils could play an important role in supporting them. AMEY had 

been commissioned to map hot spots and greatest usage of the electric vehicles. 
This scope would potentially exclude large parts of the Moorlands so AMEY had 

been requested to look specifically at our area and the proposals would be 
considered by this Panel   
 

The Panel would receive 6 monthly updates on the Plan and specific aspects would 
be considered in due course. 

 
Overall, members considered it to be a comprehensive report which was a living 
document and could be strengthened. Economic opportunities should be embraced, 

actions were now key and it was important they were progressed as quickly as 
possible. It was vital for the public to be assured that the Council was taking the 

climate emergency seriously. 
 
Cllr Porter thanked members and made notes of the feedback provided during the 

meeting.  
 

DECIDED:  

 
1) That the Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel recommend that the 

Cabinet approve the Climate Change Strategy 2021 – 2030; 
2) For the Panel to receive an annual Climate Change Strategy report and 6 

monthly update report. 
 

70 SCRUTINY REVIEW - DISCUSSION ITEM 

 

Mark Trillo – Executive Director (People), introduced a report which contained the 

feedback provided by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) following 
completion of their recent review of the Council’s Scrutiny arrangements.  Page 6



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 15 November 2021 
 

5 
 

 
CfGS were commissioned to conduct a ‘step back’ review of the Council’s Overview 

& Scrutiny arrangements. The review was conducted earlier this year and the 
conclusions were reported back to the Council in April. Their report was attached at 
Appendix A. 

 
An all member workshop was held in September to enable CfGS to share their 

findings and to provide an opportunity for councillors to give some initial feedback. 
The notes from the discussions at the workshop were attached at Appendix B. It was 
suggested and agreed at the workshop that each of the Council’s Overview & 

Scrutiny Panels should be given the opportunity to discuss the findings further and 
consider how the Council should take the recommendations forward.    

 
 CfGS made 12 recommendations for improvement. In order to assist members of the 

Panel with their considerations attached at Appendix C was a summary of CfGS’s 

recommendations within a suggested response. 
 

Following the consideration of this report by all of the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Panels a final report would be prepared for consideration by a meeting of the Full 
Council.  

 
DECIDED: The Panel considered the: 

 feedback from CfGS as detailed in Appendix A of the report; and  

 suggested response to the recommendations set out in Appendix C.   

 

 
71 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 

 

There were no questions. 

 
72 WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Due to a number complaints, particularly around communication with Your Housing 
Group (YHG), a request was made for the YHG report to be received by the Panel 

well in advance of the meeting in January.  
 
DECIDED: That the Work Programme for 2021-22 be agreed. 

 
73 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 

 
DECIDED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on the 6 th September 

2021 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
74 REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL. 

 

DECIDED: That the report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel be noted. 

 

75 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC. 
 

“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 

information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public Page 7



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 15 November 2021 
 

6 
 

in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 
10 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by 

virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 
 

76 EXEMPT URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS. 

 

Members discussed CCTV in Cheadle.   

 
 

The meeting closed at 8.52 pm 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 8



- 1 - 

Minutes of the Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel Meeting held on 7 
December 2021 

 
Present:   

 
 Lesley Adams 

Adrian Bowen 
Richard Cox (Vice-Chairman in 
the Chair) 
Ann Edgeller 
 

Gill Heesom 
Tony Holmes 
Bryan Jones 
Keith Walker 
 

 
Also in attendance: Ben Adams, Helen Fisher, Glynn Dixon, David 
Greensmith and Emma Christmas (ETAP). 
 
Apologies: Stephen Doyle, Philip Hudson, Roger Lees and Bernard Peters 
 
PART ONE 
 
38. Declarations of interest 
 
No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 
 
39. Minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2021 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on the 25 October 2021 
be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 
40. Questions to the PFCC from Members of the Public 
 
No questions were raised by the public prior to the meeting. 
 
41. Decisions published by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner (PFCC) 
 
The Panel considered the following decisions which had been published on 
the Commissioners website since the last meeting: 

 Immediate Detriment Framework Adoption by Fire and Rescue 
 Children and Young Peoples Sexual Assault Referral Service  

 
No questions were asked. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the decisions be noted. 
 
42. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) - Police Service 
 
The report updated the Panel on the current MTFS for the Police Force.  It set 
out the current year’s budget; updated MTFS assumptions; an analysis of 
key financial items; and an update on capital programme.  The report also 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



- 2 - 

outlined the budget process and provided uplift numbers for members 
information. 
 
The Commissioner explained that the budget would be constructed 
differently this year and this may result in some challenging discussions with 
the new Chief Constable.  Budget challenge sessions would be held  and the 
results would be shared with the Panel in the full budget report in January 
2022 when the panel consider the Commissioners proposed precept level. 
 
The Panel expressed concern over inflation costs, as this was viewed as the 
biggest risk factor. It was also felt that increased National Insurance costs 
from both employees and employers’ way prove challenging. 
 
It was reported that there had been no delay or problems in the recruitment 
of the additional 120 police officers during this financial year.  
  
The recently announced National Government Drug strategy was discussed 
and the implications for mental health services and treatment programmes. 
The Commissioner explained the early intervention strategies currently 
employed which included stopping production and sales, and the need for 
timely treatment and rehabilitation programmes. 
 
The Panel thanked the Commissioner for the update ahead of the precept 
meeting in January. 
 
RESOLVED: The Panel noted the contents of the report. 
 
43. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) - Fire and Rescue Service 
 
The report updated the Panel on the current MTFS.  It set out the current 
years budget; updated MTFS assumptions; the impact of Covid on financial 
performance; analysis of key financial items; and an update on the capital 
programme. 
 
The Panel were informed that the end of year budget figures were showing a 
slight underspend. 
 
Again, the panel was informed that more information would be available at 
the Fire and Rescue precept meeting in February 2022.  It was felt that the 
position was positive at the moment, but this was prior to the impact of 
winter pressures and rising prices. 
 
Following a question on the increase in pay costs, it was explained that this 
was due to the increase in additional shifts to cover sickness. 
  
RESOLVED: The Panel noted the contents of the report. 
 
44. Police and Crime and Fire and Rescue Plan consultation outcomes 

Page 10



- 3 - 

 
The Commissioner explained the consultation process for both the Police and 
Crime and the Fire and Rescue Plans, the feedback received and how the 
plans had been amended to reflect the comments/concerns of reciprocates.  
The Plans had been published on the Commissioners website and would be 
considered in detail at a future meeting of the Panel. 
 
The response to the consultation had been at a similar level to that expected 
but was reduced from the previous consultation.  This was explained as due 
to GDPR, database contacts had been removed and the Citizens panel no 
longer exists. 
 
There was a general discussion on the priorities in the plans and the need for 
detailed action plans to address some of the specific issues that were being 
experienced in the communities.  These issues included: 

 Consultation on planning applications so that new housing estates 
could be accessed if emergences occurred. 

 Visits to elderly in their homes – with more prevention information and 
a wider range of services. 

 Quicker response rates in some rural communities. 
 Visibility of police officers and use of staff resources to reassure the 

public.   
 The use of volunteers. 
 More communication with those people who don’t normally respond to 

consultation exercises. 
 
RESOLVED: The Panel noted the contents of the report. 
 
45. Annual Conference for PFCP report 
 
The Panel received a report from its member representatives at the AGM of 
the National Conference for Police, Fire and Crime Panels, held on 2 
November 2021 at Warwick University. 
  
Workshops attended as part of the National Conference had included 
discussions on ‘Scrutinising the Commissioners Performance Framework’ 
Funding and future direction’ and ’Complaints handling’. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
46. Questions to the PFCC by Panel Members 
 
No further questions were asked. 
 
 
47. Dates of Future Meetings and Work Programme 
 
RESOLVED – That the dates for future meetings be noted.  

Page 11



- 4 - 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 12



 

 
Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - Work Programme 2021/22 

 
Date Items for Agenda  

21 June 2021   

 Refreshed Community Safety Strategy  

 Climate Change Action Plan  
12 July 2021   

 Your Housing Group Regular Update   
 Update - Levels of Pollution and the Air Quality Action 

Plan 
 

06 Sep 2021   
 Anti-Social Behaviour  

08 Nov 2021   
 Climate Change Action Plan - Part 2  

 Scrutiny Review – Discussion Item  
17 Jan 2022   

 Support Staffordshire Update Presentation   

 Your Housing Group Regular Update   

 Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update     

 Climate Change Update  

7 March 2022   

 Local Policing Annual Update   

   

  

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually and Additional 

Items 

Status Update 

Staffordshire Commissioner Annual Update  Invite new municipal year 
Local Policing Team Annual Update  Scheduled to attend March 2022 

Your Housing – 6 Monthly Update  Scheduled to attend Jan 2022 
Fire & Rescue Service Annual Update  Invited 

Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update  Scheduled to attend Jan 2022 
Refreshed Environment Enforcement Policy Due approx. April 2022 

Climate Change Strategy 6 Monthly and Annual Update  May 2022 and Nov 2022 
Kick Start Scheme - invited Invited to attend 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Citizens Advice 
Staffordshire North 

& Stoke on Trent
Biddulph Office

April 2019 - March 2020
April 2020 - March 2021

Report to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 9



On the 23rd  March 2020 we went into 
lockdown with staff and volunteers 
advised to work from home at first, 
then in the office with restrictions. 

Unfortunately since the start of the 
pandemic for various reasons, we have 

lost all but three of our volunteers.

This is reflected in the lower outputs for 
April 2020 to March 2021.

P
age 16



Financial Gains

Our volunteers obtained £129,831 in 
additional benefit entitlement for the people 
of Biddulph and the surrounding area.

£2,723.80 repayments rescheduled without 
the need for debt advice.

We prevented 25 clients from becoming 
homeless and £9,802.95 of rent arrears 
payments were rearranged to ensure 
affordability.

Apr 2019 – Mar 2020 Apr 2020 – Mar 2021

Our volunteers obtained £68,370 in 
additional benefit entitlement for the people 
of Biddulph and the surrounding area.

10,827.62 repayments rescheduled without 
the need for debt advice.

We did not have any clients consult us 
over homelessness issues in this period 
due to the stay on eviction proceedings.

P
age 17



• 721 unique clients were 
advised 

• 5,443 hours of time 
donated by our 
volunteers 

• £51,980 worth of time 
given by our volunteers

Apr 2019 – Mar 2020 Apr 2020 – Mar 2021

CASNS Highlights

• 372 unique clients were 
advised 

• 2,271 hours of time 
donated by our 
volunteers 

• £21,688 worth of time 
given by our volunteers

• 1 volunteer left to start 
a job and 1 volunteer 
left to start university

P
age 18



Apr 2019 – Mar 2020 Apr 2020 – Mar 2021

Value to society
In 2020/21 for every £1 invested in Citizens 
Advice Staffordshire North and Stoke-on-
Trent we generated at least:

In 2019/20 for every £1 invested in Citizens 
Advice Staffordshire North and Stoke-on-
Trent we generated at least:

£3.40 in fiscal benefits
Savings to government

Reduction in health service demand, local authority 
homelessness services and out of work benefits for 

clients and volunteers

£21.45 in public value
Wider economic and social benefits

Improvements in participation and productivity for 
clients and volunteers

£15.01 in direct financial 
benefits to our clients

£3.93 in fiscal benefits
Savings to government

Reduction in health service demand, local authority 
homelessness services and out of work benefits for 

clients and volunteers

£21.13 in public value
Wider economic and social benefits

Improvements in participation and productivity for 
clients and volunteers

£19.00 in direct financial 
benefits to our clients

P
age 19



Apr 2019 – Mar 2020 Apr 2020 – Mar 2021

Client feedback
Always have a good experience 
when using your service. It’s a 

good job there are agencies 
around like you to help, especially 

in the current circumstances.

The woman that helped me to 
complete the form was very 

professional and explained things 
to me as i did not understand the 

questions very easily.

the advisor was very helpful and 
provided me with information to be 

able to move forward.
Very helpful, great believer in the 
service you provide it is essential. 

The person I spoke to 
could not have done any 
more, he was very good.

The adviser was very prompt and 
did exactly what he said he would 
do on that day, also giving me help 
on things to think about to help to 

completed the rest of my form. Very 
pleased with the service received.

Service is fantastic, 
feeling a whole lot better 
with the situation now. 

The adviser was amazing, 
he deserves a pay rise!

P
age 20



James – a case study
James (not his real name) self-referred via our 
drop in service, he was a retired widower, and 
due to the upset caused by his issue the client 
needed the support of a friend to help access the 
service.
James was extremely concerned as he had 
received a letter from HMRC stating that he owed 
£3000 in tax, he had tried to sort it out with HMRC 
but was confused about what the situation was.
James showed us the notification letter that 
stated he had £20,072 worth of untaxed interest 
but did not understand what this meant as he was 
only in receipt of a state pension and a small 
occupational pension from his late wife.

P
age 21



James had also received a penalty of £100 for late filing of a self-assessment 
return which he had paid before he sought advice.
We calculated that the untaxed interest amounted to only £250.56 and that the 
client needed his tax code to be recalculated
We telephoned HMRC  with James and they agreed that the tax code was 
incorrect and agreed to change it immediately, we also queried why he was 
registered for self-assessment due to his low income and they agreed to take him 
out of self-assessment.
HMRC refunded the £100 penalty paid by James and they also agreed to 
recalculate his tax assessment and send him a revised bill allowing him time to pay 
in instalments.

P
age 22



James sent us a note…

P
age 23



THANK YOU

Citizens Advice Staffordshire North 
& Stoke on Trent would like to 

thank SMDC for your continued 
support.

Your support helps us make a real 
difference.

P
age 24



JILL NORMAN

North Staffordshire 
Operations Manager

SUPPORT STAFFORDSHIRE

Leek Health Centre
07495 736160

jill.norman@supportstaffordshire.org.uk

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 10



SUPPORT STAFFORDSHIRE

• Work across Staffordshire and in Stoke-on-Trent (in 
partnership with VAST) with locality teams in each 
district and 5 local bases

• Turnover 2020/2021 - £1.2M
• Staff – 48
• Members – 1,092
• Staffordshire Moorlands members - 133

P
age 26



Support Staffordshire empowers 
communities to be the best they can be
We support communities, individuals and 

organisations to work in collaboration to bring 
about positive change in their community by 

actively encouraging Social Action 

P
age 27



Our offer to voluntary and community groups

• Free membership
• Free training:
• Health and safety and premises management –

18th Jan
• Befriending skills – 25th Jan
• Adult safeguarding awareness – 7th Feb
• Writing basic business plans - 10th Feb
• 3 hours of free advice a year & support of 
a Locality Officer

• Information through 
www.supportstaffordshire.org.uk

P
age 28

http://www.supportstaffordshire.org.uk/


Our offer to voluntary and community groups

• Access to bursary scheme and 
consultancy services

• Networking opportunities such as 
Staffordshire Moorlands VCSE 
Locality Forum – next meeting 
2pm Wednesday 16th March by zoom

• Representation and advocacy

P
age 29



Our offer to voluntary and community groups 

• Advice on volunteering to groups 
and also to individuals (over the 
phone or face-to-face)

• New database and website -
Simply Connects Staffordshire

P
age 30



Our offer to voluntary and community groups 

Moorlands team:
• Esther Jones Senior Locality Officer and 
Rural Officer for the Moorlands

• Celia Muir South West Peak Community 
Engagement & Grants Officer

• Sharon Middling Biddulph Community 
Officer

• Victoria Lockett Primary Care Link 
Worker

• Amanda Dodd Primary Care Link Worker

P
age 31



Our offer to voluntary and community groups

Moorlands team:
Based at
Leek Health Centre
Also working from home
Meeting groups at their locations

P
age 32



Community Group Support 

Target for 

2021-22
Achievements 1 April –

30 Sept 2021

Support to community 
groups

328 hours 89.5 hours

Number of different 
groups supported

40 48

Grant funding secured 
as a result of support 
from Support Staffs

£10,000 Total £171,344

P
age 33



Arts Forum Support

AIMS/ TARGETS 2021/ 22 ACHIEVED APRIL TO SEPT 2021

• Help the Arts Forum Committees and 
their individual members to run 
vibrantly and sustainably

• Help Arts Forum Committees and 
individual members meet and 
understand the Arts Grants Guidance 
Notes

• Administer grants to the Arts Forums 
and Festivals

• Celebrate the wealth and diversity of 
the community led arts sector in 
Staffordshire Moorlands

• Online forum meeting held to enable 
artists and groups to meet, network and 
promote their activities

• New single grants panel set up and 6 
members recruited

• Arts grants criteria and application form 
revised & process planned

• 8 individual arts groups advised and 
supported

• Encouraged community arts groups to 
take part in SuS training, Forums, etc. 

P
age 34



“Outside” – Creative People and Places, Arts England 

• £1.2M programme with £943K from Arts England 
grant

• Starts with 6 months planning in April 2022
• Full start October 2022 for 2 ½ years
• Community led
• Advisory group
• Co-production by residents with professional 

artists
• Engage the non-engaged in arts 

P
age 35



Questions?

jill.norman@supportstaffordshire.org.uk

07495 736160

P
age 36

mailto:jill.norman@supportstaffordshire.org.uk


SMDC Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

17 January 2022 

Your Housing Group Legacy Report 

     

   

1 
 

1. Report title: Your Moorlands - Legacy Agreement Update 

 

2. Action:  

For information and noting 

 
3. Recommendation(s) 

      It is recommended that the content of this report is discussed, and actions agreed at  

      the meeting. 

 

4. Report of:  

Kelly Tasker, Service Manager - Housing Operations South 

 

5. Contact details of author:  

Kelly Tasker – kelly.tasker@yourhousinggroup.co.uk  

 

6. Confidential report:  

No 

 

7. Supporting documents 

Appendix 1 

Page 37

Agenda Item 11

mailto:kelly.tasker@yourhousinggroup.co.uk


SMDC Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

17 January 2022 

Your Housing Group Legacy Report 

     

   

2 
 

 

8. Introduction  

In 2017, Moorlands Housing Association transferred its engagements to Arena 

Housing Group (now Your Housing Limited). This means that governance is 

undertaken by those members of YHG Common Board who govern Your Housing 

Limited and now also have specific oversight and responsibility.  A legacy agreement 

was developed by and for: 

 

 Moorlands Housing Association 

 Your Housing Group (YHG) 

 Staffordshire Moorlands District Council (SMDC) 

 

The legacy agreement is a goodwill agreement between Moorlands Housing 

Association, YHG and SMDC and sets out the condition for change to the legal 

structure. 

 

This paper provides a performance and development update on YHG business areas 

identified in the legacy agreement and relates to business activity between April 

2021 and September 2021 unless otherwise specified. 

 

In addition to reporting to the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel (COSP), the 

legacy agreement includes a requirement for a small tenant panel to be convened to 

join the COSP in reviewing the report. A customer panel has been recruited and 

attends the COSP meetings. 

 

9. Your Housing Group Response to Covid 19 

              

Since the end of the national lockdowns of January – March 2021 YHG has operated 

our services as normal. A full repairs offer is in place and our housing management 

services and compliance functions are operating as normal.  Although YHG are 

operating our services as normal, where customers have concerns about COVID 19 

we will try to facilitate activity digitally or by telephone where possible.  

 

YHG has also seen ongoing impacts due to staff sickness and isolation from COVID 

19, this has become more prevalent over recent months with the emergence of the 

Omicron variant.  There has also been an impact in shortages of labour and materials 

in the construction sector which has impacted the delivery of some asset works, 

primarily some delays with void works.  

 

 

Page 38



SMDC Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

17 January 2022 

Your Housing Group Legacy Report 

     

   

3 
 

YHG continues to monitor local and national Covid 19 guidance and adapts how we 

deliver our services in line with Government advice and recommendations. 

 

10. Housing Management 

During 2021 YHG reviewed our general needs housing management structure and 

implemented a new customer operating model.  The new operating model went live 

in October 2021 and introduces an enhanced regional approach to tenancy and 

housing management, tenancy enforcement and allocations. This will result in a 

more collaborative approach, enabling colleagues to improve their relationship with 

customers, local stakeholders and better understand the needs of local 

neighbourhoods. 

 

The new operating model has increased the number of front-line housing 

management colleagues to improve our services to customers in the following 

areas:- 

 Tenancy Enforcement to improve our approach to anti-social behaviour and 

other tenancy breaches. 

 Keyworker Tenancy Support by re-introducing a dedicated Tenancy Support 

team to support new and existing customers that may need more intensive 

dedicated support to enable them to sustain their tenancies. 

 

The structure of the new Regional Housing Management Team supporting customers 

in the Staffordshire Moorlands locality is illustrated below:- 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 39



SMDC Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

17 January 2022 

Your Housing Group Legacy Report 

     

   

4 
 

 

       10.1  Neighbourhood inspection and Customer Engagement Events 

YHG will reintroduce our Customer Engagement events when it is safe to do 

so. We are currently carrying out neighbourhood inspections on an ad-hoc 

basis however the new customer operating model will see a more 

comprehensive scheduled programme of neighbourhood inspections 

introduced and communicated to customers by the Regional Housing 

Management Teams. YHG will be promoting this activity in the Moorlands 

area over the coming months and would welcome elected member 

involvement.  

 

     10.2 Money Advice Support 

YHG has a dedicated Money Advice Team who provide support and advice to 

customers to maximise their income and the team assist in applying for 

welfare benefits and grants to support customers in their tenancy. During the 

period 01 April to 30 September 2021, 176 customers were referred for 
assistance to YHG’s Money Advice Team.       

In this period £231,387.65 has been secured in benefit gains for customers 

including £90,399.07 Universal Credit payments and £49,899.28 Housing 

Benefit payments.  In addition the team has supported customers in 

obtaining 19 charitable grants for the purchase of white goods, energy and 
other essential items. 

 

11. Lettings 

Lettings performance has been impacted by the ongoing response to COVID 19. 

Although lettings activity has not been restricted there have been delays due to 

applicants’ COVID status and in some cases an applicant’s reluctance to move home 

at this time. In addition our in house contractor Fix360 has experienced sector wide 

issues with shortages of labour and materials impacting the time taken to complete 

void repair works. The target for average re-let days is 28.5 days, however, 

performance has continued to be impacted throughout the year.   

 

12. Compliance  

YHG continue to be 100% compliant in terms of domestic gas servicing, asbestos 

checks, electrical safety, and legionella testing.  Our Compliance and Facilities Agents 

also do regular safety checks on all our communal areas and these were continued 

during all periods of lockdown. 

 

 

 

Page 40



SMDC Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

17 January 2022 

Your Housing Group Legacy Report 

     

   

5 
 

 

13. Development 

13.1 Well Street, Lightwood, Cheadle.   

YHG are still exploring the option to deliver 21 new build units on this site, 

which is currently owned by the Group subject to 

             Treasury and Board approval. 

 

13.2 Sunninghill Drive, Leek.  

YHG continue working with Casey Development to unlock the development 

of the former Barnfield Hughes concrete plant on Sunninghill Road, Leek. The 

plan is to deliver a range of 2 bed, 3 bed and 4 bed housing for shared 

ownership and rent to buy.  

 

14. Repairs and Maintenance  

Performance and normal service delivery has continued throughout the ongoing 

COVID 19 pandemic. There have been shortages across the sector due to materials 

and labour which has impacted some of our services, specifically delivery of some 

voids.  

 

During this period YHG have seen improvements in service delivery which is 

demonstrated in an increase in customer satisfaction which is currently at 92%.  

 

          See Appendix 1 for Repairs and Maintenance Performance Information. 

 

15. Asset 

          See Appendix 1 for Asset Improvement delivered in the Moorlands in 2020/2021 

 

16. Digital Engagement 

All tenancy sign ups to general needs housing in Moorlands area are now digital 

except where this poses specific challenges for the customer due to disability or 

vulnerability. 

 

17. Community Regeneration 

YHG has continued to support Community Centres including Haregate Community 

Centre, Biddulph Youth Zone and Cheadle Homelink. The support has concentrated 

on sourcing volunteers and coordinating management to enable community access 
for weekly food parcels, Christmas presents, and lunches. 

 

17.1 Since April 2022 Five community clean up “impact” days have been held; two 

in Biddulph, two in leak and one in Cheadle. These impact days have included 

Page 41



SMDC Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

17 January 2022 

Your Housing Group Legacy Report 

     

   

6 
 

customers, PCSO’s local Cllrs, YHG staff and contractors. The aim of all the 

impact days is to improve the neighbourhood, provide volunteering 

experience and customer engagement. The benefits include improved 

customer wellbeing. 

 

17.2 Employment support has continued with over 140 members interacting on 

the Facebook Workclub. In addition, over 50 work club phone support calls 

have been maintained. The work clubs reopened in October with a maximum 

of 6 customers having access to one to one support via a booking system in 

Biddulph and Leek. The support provided not only includes access to 

employment advice, training, volunteering as well as housing and benefit 

advice.  

 

The outputs from the employment support since April 2021 to Dec 2021 are 

as follows: 

 

26 customers have been gained employment 

15 customers into regular volunteering 

21 customers have accessed training.  

 

   17.3  “Landlocked Land” Roach Close   

Further investigative works have been ongoing in the land situated behind 

Roach Close which has become a target for flytipping. We are reviewing 

options for this site, including offering residents a garden extension.  We are 

expecting to be able to report back in 2022 on a range of options to develop 
out this space with full engagements with the householders effected.  

 

18. Commercial  

  The external Revolution Launderette Unit outside Mill Street, Leek was installed in 

January 2021 and an ongoing review is being provided on how the unit is being used 
and impact it has had to increase footfall to the Mill Street shops.  

 

In addition to this, planning permission to change the layout of the frontage of Mill 

Street to allow a one-way, short stay parking facility has been made and a decision 

by planners is expected in January 2022. The aim of these improvements is to further 

increase the viability of the commercial units and reduce local customers ’ parking 

issues.  

 

Page 42



SMDC Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

17 January 2022 

Your Housing Group Legacy Report 

     

   

7 
 

Work has also progressed on the St. Johns, Biddulph shopping parade in which a 

local customer is looking to open a Bridal shop early in 2022. This business will in 

time be able to employ local customers.  

  19. Recommendation 

         It is recommended that the content of this report is discussed, and actions agreed at  

         the meeting. 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

January 2022 

Appendix 1 Moorlands Legacy Agreement Performance Indicators April 2021 – September 2021  

Area  Legacy Agreement  KPI        Target Actual 
Housing 
Management  

Overview of local service 

delivery  
 
 
 
 
 

 Number of lettings 

 

N/A 73 

 Average re-let time 28.5 days 43 days 

 Actual Void rent loss £63,284.34 £96,984.27 
(£33,699.93 
variance) 

 Percentage of gas compliance 100% 100% 

Repairs YHG will  continue with the 
internal provision of day-to-day, 
voids and planned works within 

the Moorlands area through its 
DLO or other structure which 
employs local labour providing 

this is commercially viable. 
 
 
YHG will  continue to explore 

opportunities with High Peak 
and any other local 
opportunities to develop JV’s, 

cost sharing vehicles or 

 
 Repairs completed within target  

 

                                 Responsive Repairs 
 

21 days  
 

14.9 days  
 

                                     Minor Works 

 

63 days  32.4 days  

 Average cost of repair  

 
N/A £121per repair 

 Average time to complete void works   

 

N/A 18.9 days 

 Customer satisfaction with repairs service  

 

75% 92% (very satisfied 

or satisfied) 

P
age 45



 

January 2022 

management agreements, these 
will  only progress if the 
arrangement can add strength 
and value to the existing in-

house provision. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

 
Community 
Regeneration  

 

In accordance with the Group’s 
Customer First methodology, 
develop and implement a YHG 
neighbourhood plan which will  

include a minimum financial 
investment of £73k per annum 
for at least 2 years (2017/19) 

 
2016/18 details and principles 
of the YHG neighbourhood plan 
were developed in consultation 

with legacy scrutiny task and 
finish group.     
 
 

 

Update on plan including: 
 

 Increase in customers who are economically 

active due to engagement with YHG activities  
 

 
 

 Increase in appeal of local neighbourhoods  

 

 
 Increase in local services within priority 

neighbourhood 
 

 

 
 
 
            

 

Work Club 
Outcomes from 
April  2021 to 
December 2021 

 
 26 customers 

have gained 
employment 

 15 customers 

into regular 
volunteering 

 21 customers 

have accessed 
training.  

 
SMDC Partnership 
agreement to 
support a case 

load of 15 (BRFC) 
Building Resil ient 
Families and 

Communities. 
From Oct 2021 – 

P
age 46



 

January 2022 

Oct 2022.  YHG 
will  receive £15k 
towards the 
project 

Revolution 
Laundrette on Mill  
Street, Leek, has 

been installed and 
in operation, is 
being used 
regularly and we 

have received 
positive feedback 
from local 

customers.  
 
Currently awaiting 
an outcome from 

SMDC planning for 
a new and 
improved car park 
layout to attract 

commercial 
customers and 
stop unwanted 

parking in the local 
residential arears 
around the Mill  
Street shopping 

area.   
 
5 Community 

Clean Up days 
have been held 
across Leek, 
Biddulph & 

P
age 47



 

January 2022 

Cheadle.  
 
 
 

 

Money Advice  YHG has a dedicated Money 
Advice Team who provide 
support and advice to customer 

to maximise their income and 
apply for welfare benefits and 
grants to support them in their 
tenancy.  

 Numbers of customer referred for assistance  

 Amount of benefit gains 

 Numbers of grant applications that are 

successful  

 176 customers 
referred for 
assistance from 

the Money Advice 
Team     
£231,387.65 
secured in benefit 

gains, including;  
£90,399.07 
Universal Credit 
payments and 

£49,899.28 
Housing Benefit 
payments  

19 charitable 
grants obtained 
for the purchase 
of white goods, 

energy and other 
essential items, 
worth £1,749 

including £1,453 in 
food vouchers 
issued to 
customers in crisis 

 
 

P
age 48



 

January 2022 

Asset and 
Development  
 
 
 
 
 

The Capital Investment plan for 
2019/20 to be developed and 
approved by YHG by April  2019 
and annually thereafter by April  

each year 

Overall  expenditure to date & programme progress 
reporting by committed and completed spend  
• Unit costs  
• Number of component replacements  

 
 
 

 
  
 

Overall Spend 
£1,977,515.04 
 
Roofing  

Total cost 
£1,209,081.57 
Number delivered 

= 114, average 
cost £10,605.98 
 
Kitchens 

Total cost 
£500,705.25 
Number delivered 

= 72, average cost 
£6,954.24 
 
Bathrooms 

Total cost 
£267,728.27 
Number delivered 
= 52, average cost 

£5,148.62 

 
Digital engagement 

Customers will  be able to access 
YHG service via a digital 
platform including web chat, 

email, text and via the website 
and social media 

Update on availability and usage of digital platform 
 Number of customers accessing services 

digitally 

   
13,000 customers 
signed up to ‘Your 

Home Hub’ across 
YHG 
 
 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	5 To Note the Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel.
	7 Work Programme
	9 Citizens Advice Bureau - Annual Update (Leek, Cheadle & Staffordshire North & Stoke-on-Trent Biddulph Office) - (6:15pm)
	Citizens Advice Staffordshire North & Stoke on Trent�Biddulph Office�April 2019 - March 2020�April 2020 - March 2021
	On the 23rd  March 2020 we went into lockdown with staff and volunteers advised to work from home at first, then in the office with restrictions. ��Unfortunately since the start of the pandemic for various reasons, we have lost all but three of our volunteers.��This is reflected in the lower outputs for April 2020 to March 2021.
	Financial Gains
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	James – a case study
	Slide Number 8
	James sent us a note…
	THANK YOU

	10 Support Staffordshire Update Presentation. (6:45pm)
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12

	11 Your Housing Group - Regular Performance Update. (7:15pm)
	Appendix 1 - Moorlands Legacy Information

	14 To Approve the Exempt Minutes of the Previous Meeting.

